
 

West Devon Development 

Management and Licensing 

Committee 
 

Title: Agenda 

Date: Tuesday, 13th December, 2022 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Chamber - Kilworthy Park 

Full Members: Chairman Cllr Yelland 

 Vice Chairman Cllr Pearce 

 Members: Cllr Heyworth 
Cllr Leech 
Cllr Mott 
Cllr Moyse 
 

Cllr Ratcliffe 
Cllr Renders 
Cllr Southcott 
Cllr Spettigue 
 

Interests – 
Declaration and 
Restriction on 
Participation: 

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 
item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 
disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Committee 
administrator: 

Kathy Hoare Senior Case Manager - Democratic Services 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

  Page No 

 

1.   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

 In accordance with the Code of Conduct, Members are invited to 
declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, Other Registerable 
Interests and Non-Registerable Interests including the nature and 
extent of such interests they may have in any items to be 
considered at this meeting; 
 

 

3.   Items Requiring Urgent Attention  

 To consider those items which, in the opinion of the Chairman, 
should be considered by the Meeting as matters of urgency (if 
any); 
  

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 10 

 Meeting held on 8 November 2022; 
 
Also Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee Meeting held on 6 
October 2022; 
 

 

5.   Planning Applications  

 To see Letters of Representation and further supplementary 
information relating to any of the planning applications on the 
agenda, please select the following link and enter the relevant 
Reference number: http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding 
 

 

(a)   2961/22/VAR 
 

11 - 18 

  
WARD NAME Hatherleigh  

APPLICATION NUMBER        2961/22/VAR 
LOCATION "Solar Farm, Willsland", Highampton 

DEVELOPMENT Application for variation of condition 12 
(removal of equipment and site 

restoration) on Appeal Decision 
APP/Q1153/A/11/2164421 

(01537/2011) to extend the operational 
life of the solar farm 

 

 

6.   Planning Appeals Update  
 

19 - 20 

7.   Update on Undetermined Major Applications  21 - 22 

http://westdevon.gov.uk/searchlanding


 
 

  Page No 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of a meeting of the WEST DEVON DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT & 
LICENSING COMMITTEE held on TUESDAY the 8th day of November 2022 at 
10.00am in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILWORTHY PARK 
 
 

Present: Cllr J Yelland – Chairman 
                      Cllr T Pearce – Vice Chairman 
         

Cllr N Heyworth                   Cllr B Ratcliffe 
Cllr T Leech                 Cllr M Renders 
Cllr C Mott                         Cllr T Southcott  
Cllr D Moyse                     Cllr J Spettigue                                                                       
             

Head of Development Management (JH) 
Planning Officer (NG) 
Monitoring Officer (DF) 
Democratic Services Officer (KH)    
 

 
 
*DM&L.21 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

No apologies were received  
                      
 
*DM&L.22 DECLARATION OF INTEREST 

Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items 
of business to be considered during the course of this meeting. Cllr 
Yelland declared an interest in application 2844/22/FUL as she was 
related to the applicant and left the room when this item was discussed 
and voted on. In the interest of transparency she stated that she had 
received correspondence from both a supporter and an objector in 
regard to application 2603/22/FUL and had been forwarded to the 
Planning Officer in line with the Code of Conduct. 
As the applicant of application 2603/22/FUL was West Devon Borough 
Council the Monitoring Officer granted the Committee Members a 
dispensation so as to allow them to determine this application. 

 
 
*DM&L.23 URGENT BUSINESS 
                      There was no urgent business brought forward to this meeting. 
 
 
*DM&L.24 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES 

The minutes from the Development Management and Licensing 
Committee of 11 October were confirmed as a correct record. The 
minutes from the Licensing Sub-Committee from 23 August had a typo 
and a word was missed from one of the objectors’ statements. The 
amended version was signed as a correct record. 

 
*DM&L.25 PLANNING, LISTED BUILDING, TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 

AND ENFORCEMENT REPORTS 
                     The Committee proceeded to consider the report that had been 

prepared by the relevant Planning Officer on each of the following 
Applications and considered also the comments of the Town and Parish 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Councils together with other representations received, which were  
summarised within the report. 

    
(a) Application No: 2844/22/FUL                Ward: Okehampton 

                                                                 South 
 
                            Site Address:  2, Crediton Road, Okehampton   
 
                            Development: Alterations to roof structure & associated works 
 
                            Recommendation: Conditional Approval 
                             
                            Conditions: 

1. Standard time limit 
2. Adhere to plans 
3. Adhere to ecology Report 
4. Installation of bat and bird box on completion of development 
5. Details of fibre cement slates to be submitted and agreed in 

writing with LPA 
6. Details of proposed Upvc windows to be submitted and agreed 

in writing by LPA 
 

 
                             The Planning Officer took members through the report and stated  
                             That the key issues were: 
 

 Visual impact on the setting of the conversation area (site 
within CA buffer-zone) 

 The site is not Listed nor within the setting of a Listed Building 
 Neighbour Amenity 
 Design & Materials 
 Environmental Hazards 
 Ecology 

 
                            Since the publishing of the officer’s report the agent had submitted  
                            details of the colour and type of roofing tile and these were  
                            acceptable and in keeping with the conservation area, therefore  
                            condition 5 in the report was no longer required. In debate Members  
                            commented on the key issues identified by the Planning 
                            Officer and on the positives of bringing the building back into use. 

                    
                            Committee Decision: Conditional Approval 
 
                            Conditions:      
                            1. Standard time limit  
                            2. Adherence to plans  
                            3. Adherence to Ecology Report  
                            4. Installation of bat and bird box on completion of development 
                            5. Details of proposed Upvc windows to be submitted and agreed  
                                in writing by LPA 
                                  
                     

(b) Application No: 2603/22/FUL                Ward: Tavistock North 
 
Site Address: West Devon Borough Council Page 2



 
Development: Erection of 3 flagpoles 8 meters high to replace  
                         Single 8 meter high flagpole 
 
Recommendation: Conditional Approval 
 
Conditions: 
1. Time 
2. Accordance with plans 
3. Carbon reduction implementations 
 
Speakers 
 
Objector: Hilary Moule 
Supporter: Chris Brook 
 
In her introduction, the Planning Officer made a correction to the 
report stating that reference was made to a Neighbourhood Plan 
for Tavistock when in fact there was no adopted Neighbourhood 
Plan. There were also additional representations that had been 
received since the agenda had been published.  
 
The new points raised were summarised as follows: 
 
 Concerns remained that this application represented a waste 

of taxpayers money; 
 The proposal was not considered to meet the aims of the 

Council regarding carbon reduction (particularly the use of 
fibreglass); 

 Loss of the foliage mentioned by officers and residents that 
screened the proposal had died back over the past 6 months, 
however the site was still being described as not visible from 
the road or nearest dwellings; 

 A number of Councillors had been contacted about concerns 
and did not respond; 

 The report concluded that the impact on residents would not 
be significant but this was refuted by the objector who 
believed that the noise impact from apparatus associated 
with the flagpole would be ‘considerable’ for the nearest 
neighbouring residents. 

 
During questions, the Planning Officer stated that the cost of the 
flagpoles was not a material planning reason. 
 
The Objector stated that she lived 20 metres from the proposed 
site for the flagpoles. She noted that the wildlife report was 
missing from the officers published report.  There were two 
species of owl and bats in the vicinity and this could have an effect 
on them.  
 
She further stated that  

 the amenity loss would be significant to her with noise 
and disturbance.   

Page 3



 There were two flagpoles in the town and a redundant 
one on the corner of Quant Park and asked why more 
were needed.   

 The existing flagpole was currently buffered by trees, 
however the site of the proposed ones had no significant 
trees.  

 The production of fibreglass was toxic and 
environmentally unfriendly.  

 The 12 representations to oppose the application cited 
the inappropriate use of taxpayers money. No Officer or 
Councillor had questioned the finances used to prepare 
this planning application let alone its implementation. 

 
The supporter explained about: 
 

 The community and civic role of the Council. 
 The issues around flying more than one flag on a 

flagpole.  
 Having three flagpole would mean the council could 

represent its communities and make statements where 
appropriate. 

 The constraints as to where to site the flagpoles. 
 A rubber weight would be used at the top of the flagpole 

to stop the noise from the halyard. 
 The existing flagpole would be removed. 

 
A Member asked why it had not been brought before the Hub 
Committee, in the past Members are normally consulted.  The 
Monitoring Officer said it was right for the Member to raise the 
question, but it was a matter to be dealt with elsewhere and 
outside of the Development Management & Licensing Committee.  
 
In response to further questions, the supporter explained the 
choice of fibreglass poles was due to them being lighter and more 
slender than a wooden flagpole, giving an easier installation. He 
explained the constraints on site meant that the proposed position 
was the best compromise.  
 
The Head of Development Management confirmed there was a 
report on the impact of the development on the trees and in the 
report no concerns were raised on the impact on wildlife. 
 
In debate Members raised concerns over noise pollution. The 
Head of Development Management confirmed noise was a 
material planning consideration under DEV1 of the Joint Local 
Plan. The Monitoring Officer explained to Members that whilst 
noise nuisance was a matter of planning judgement there had to 
be sufficient evidence to back it up.  

                                       
                            

 
Committee Decision: Refusal 
 
Reasons: 

Page 4



The proposal will have harmful effects and an unacceptable 
impact on the amenity of local residents by reason of noise 
disturbance and pollution arising from the apparatus associated 
with the flying of flags from the proposed flagpoles contrary to 
Policies DEV1 and DEV 2 (1) of the Joint Local Plan. 

   
                           
*DM&L.26    PLANNING APPEALS UPDATE 
 The Head of Development Management, relayed to Members that 

application 1355/19/FUL, 10 Ford Street, Tavistock was upheld and 
consent was granted for 6 flats but costs were refused. The inspector 
had deemed the Committee had acted in a correct way.  

                      The S106 on Application 0723/21/FUL for 44 residential dwellings and 
outline planning for commercial land at Plymouth Road, Tavistock had 
been delayed due to the landowner having passed away.  

 
 
*DM&L.27    UPDATE ON UNDETERMINED MAJOR APPLICATIONS 
 The Monitoring Officer explained to Members that once the Section 106 

agreement in regard to Application 3652/20/FUL land at Plymouth 
Road, Tavistock has been finalised, there would be a briefing to 
Members of the DM&L Committee and Ward Members. There was a 
delay due to the death of the landowner and probate being issued. The 
Head of Development Management informed Members that there was 
a meeting with the applicant  that day in regard to application 
4004/21/FUL Former Hazeldon Preparatory School, Tavistock. The 
application would still be recommended for refusal. 

 
                       
 

(The Meeting terminated at 11.45 am) 
 

______________________ 
Chairman 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  
HELD ON THURSDAY 6 OCTOBER 2022 

  
Present:       Cllr T Leech (Sub-Committee Member) 
  Cllr T Pearce (Sub-Committee Member) 
                     Cllr B Ratcliffe (Sub-Committee Member) 
 
                      

David Fairbairn, Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
 Lee Staples, Specialist Licensing  
  Sarah Harcombe, Specialist Environmental Health 
  Kathy Hoare, Democratic Services Officer 
  Tara O’Keefe, Specialist Licensing (via Teams) 

                        Mr  Beech, Applicant (via Teams) 
   
 

                            
  
*LSC4           APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  

It was RESOLVED that; 

That Cllr Pearce be appointed Chairman for the duration of the Sub-
Committee meeting.  
 

*LSC5             REGISTER OF INTERESTS 
 
                       No interests were declared by the Committee Members 

 
*LSC6        TO DETERMINE AN APPLICATION 
 

The Sub Committee considered an application for the granting of a 
Temporary Events Notice at The Stannary Arms, Legion House, 2 
King Street, Tavistock, PL19 0DS. 
 
The Licensing Specialist took Members through the application that 
was before them for a Temporary Events Notice. It was noted that 
there had been several complaints received by the Environmental 
Health department in regard to noise levels at various events at this 
establishment where residents were kept awake after 11pm. 
Environmental Health Officers had spoken to the Landlord on three 
occasions in regard to the complaints received. 
 
Mr Beech stated that adjustments could be made to the event by 
moving the music from the function room into the bar area. He 
confirmed three bands and one singer would be performing on the 
night.  
 
The Environmental Health Specialist read out the list of complaints  
received which were all recorded after the normal licensing time of 
11pm. Page 7



 
       

The Sub-Committee retired and when the members returned the 
Chairman read out the following statement setting out the Sub-
Committee’s decision and the reasons for it: 

 
 
The Decision  
 

The Sub-Committee decided to REFUSE the application; 
 
The aim of the Licensing Act 2003 is to provide a more flexible licensing system, by 
reducing the burden of unnecessary regulation, but still maintaining public order and 
safety.  The 2003 Act makes it clear that licensable activities are to be restricted 
only where it is necessary to promote the four Licensing Objectives.  
 
A temporary event notice allows licensable activities at a temporary event. It is 
intended to be a light touch process and as is the case here, may be given in 
respect of premises which already have a premises licence to cover licensable 
activities not permitted under the existing authorisation.  The statutory scheme does 
however give the Police and the Environmental Health the opportunity to object to a 
temporary event notice on the basis of the Licensing Objectives.  Where one or both 
object, a hearing must be held. Following which we may decide to impose 
conditions which already apply to an existing premises licence at the venue, or 
issue a counter notice to prevent the event going ahead. 
 
It is against this background that we heard that Martyn Beech gave notice of his 
intention to hold a temporary event in the Function Room and Bar Area at The 
Stannary Arms Tavistock.  During the hearing Mr Beech suggested that he had 
intended that the live music would be in the Function Room until 11pm with the 
music moving to the Bar Area between 11pm and 1.30am, but would be willing to 
confine the live music to the Function Room for the whole of the event.  We were 
advised that modification of a temporary event notice was only possible before a 
hearing had been held or where it had been agreed that a hearing was 
unnecessary.  Equally, we were advised that we could not impose a condition to 
that effect.  Accordingly, the Sub-Committee has considered the temporary event 
notice as it was submitted. 
 
The Stannary Arms is a public house and has a premises licence, which applies to 
the area in which the event is to be held.  The premises are located within the town 
centre of Tavistock, as such there is a mix of uses and occupiers.  These include 
residential premises and occupiers. 
 
The nature of the proposed temporary event was a charity event with local bands 
playing live to raise funds for a local charity.  The notice said that the licensable 
activities would be the retail sale of alcohol; the provision of regulated entertainment 
and the provision of late-night refreshment between 7pm and 2am on 7 October 
2022. The regulated entertainment, ie the playing of live music would however only 
be between 7pm and 1.30pm. The maximum number of people that would be 
present on the premises at any one time would be 100. 
 Page 8



On 27 September 2022 the Council’s Environmental Health Specialist, Sarah 
Harcombe objected to the temporary event notice.  The objection set out concerns 
about public nuisance, in particular the absence of information about how Mr Beech 
planned to deal with late night noise.  The Environmental Health Specialist 
elaborated on the reasons for those concerns at the hearing.  She explained that 
noise nuisance after 11pm had been a particular problem with a number of 
complaints being received from nearby residents.  11pm being the time after which 
recorded music was prohibited under the terms of the premises licence.    The 
Environmental Health Specialist provided details of the complaints received.  She 
concluded by saying that she considered the complaints to be credible.  
 
In response and in further explaining the details of the event Mr Beech said he had 
planned to hold a mini music event in aid of a local mental health charity.  There 
would be three live bands who would play until 11pm with a solo singer singing to a 
backing track from then until 1.30am.  He explained the layout of the premises and 
that the Function Room did not have any windows and he suspected that the 
complaints emanated from events in the Pool Room which had a large window.  Mr 
Beech also told us about his future plans for dealing with noise issues. 
 

1. Having considered all that has been said and presented to us, the Sub-

Committee has decided that the event would undermine the Licensing 

Objectives and should not take place. 

 
2. We have reached this decision because of the history of noise complaints and 

the failure to respond effectively, we were not satisfied that the event would 

take place without there being a noise nuisance being caused to neighbouring 

residents.  Accordingly, to allow the event to take place, with or without 

conditions, would in the view of the Sub-Committee fail to promote the 

Licensing Objectives.  

  

3. Following the giving of the counter-notice all parties have the right to appeal to 

the Magistrates’ Court. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
_____________  

                 Chairman  
  Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



O PLANNING APPLICATION REPORT  

 
Case Officer:   Graham Smith                  Parish:  Highampton   Ward:  Hatherleigh 

 
Application No:  2961/22/VAR 
 

 

Agent/Applicant: 

 
Quintas Energy UK Limited 

Suite C, 3rd Floor 
3 Harbour Exchange Square 

Canary Wharf 
London 
E14 9GE 

 

Applicant: 

 
Ms Juliette Bustamante - Quintas Energy 

UK Limited 
8th Floor 

3 Harbour Exchange Square 
London 
E14 9GE 

 
Site Address:    Solar Farm, Willsland, Highampton, EX21 5LQ 

 
 

 
Development:  Application for variation of condition 12 (removal of equipment and site 

restoration) on Appeal Decision APP/Q1153/A/11/2164421 (01537/2011) to extend the 
operational life of the solar farm  
 

Reason Application is to be determined at committee:  Both local members share the 

concerns of the Parish Council who have objected that the existing permission for this 

development has a considerable amount of time left to run before it expires and this application 
is premature. 
 
Recommendation: CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 

 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5a



 

Conditions 

 
1. Variation of time  

2. No additional external lighting 
3. No additional plant and machinery 

4. Adherence to recommendations of approved Habitat Survey 
 

Key issues for consideration: 

 

Principle of development, Design/Visual Impact, Neighbour Amenity, Highways, Carbon 

Reduction 
 
Financial Implications:  

 

The Government has previously stated that the New Homes Bonus scheme will be ending and 

that they will be inviting views on how they can reform the New Homes Bonus scheme for 
2023-24, to ensure it is focused where homes are needed most. 
 

A Policy paper is due to be issued by the Government in December 2022, which will state 
whether the New Homes Bonus scheme will continue for one more year into 2023-24. 

 
If it does continue, the Council’s allocation of New Homes Bonus for 2023-24 will be based on 
dwellings built out by October 2022. 

 

 

Site Description: 
 

The site is an established solar farm approximately 2.3km to the west of Hatherleigh and is 
surrounded by farm buildings to the north and open fields on all other sides. The solar farm is 
a 2.8 MW ground mounted solar farm located in 5 fields and consisting of some 13244 static 

solar PV panels mounted on some 208 arrays. 
 

The Proposal: 
 

Permission is sought to extend the operational life of the solar farm. When planning permission 

for this site was granted 7th March 2012 (reference: APP/Q1153/A/11/2164421) a condition 
was imposed giving a period of 25 years for the development to operate before the equipment 

would be removed and the site restored to open fields. This timeframe was fairly standard for 
this type of development and tied in to timeframes associated with FIT tariff scheme which was 
a subsidy lasting 25 years. The timeframe also reflected an understanding that the useful life 

of photovoltaic (PV) panels was assumed to be no more than 25 years. 
 

A supporting statement has been submitted stating that the 25 year period can be extended as 
renewable installations have become viable without subsidies and also that it is now ‘common 
knowledge’ that such installations can last for much longer periods. Consequently the applicant 

only wishes to extend the life cycle of the development from 25 year to 40 years, with the same 
removal and reinstatement obligations at the end of the period. 
 
 
 

Consultations: 

Page 12



 

 County Highways Authority  
 
No Highways Implications   

 

 Town/Parish Council 

 
Highampton Parish Council objects to the proposal on the grounds that there is no public 

advantage to be gained from the removal of the condition so far in advance of the expiration 
date for the condition of 2036. In 15 years time conditions might be such that prioritisation 
of land use might be very different from those of today, and that they may warrant the return 

of the land to its original state as specified by the original condition. That being the case the 
council was of the opinion that the condition should be retained and potentially reviewed a 

year or two before the decommissioning date of 2036. 
 

 Others 

 
Representations: 

 

None received 
 
Relevant Planning History 

 
01537/2011 - The solar farm subject to this application was APPROVED on appeal (reference: 

APP/Q1153/A/11/2164421) on the 7th March 2011. 
 

02660/2012 – Variation of condition 4 of planning permission 01537/2011 in order to allow 
flexibility to commence earlier in the season CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 11th July 2012 

 
00012/2013 – Non material amendment for amended siting of plant buildings to application 
02260/2012 APPROVED 15th February 2013 

 
03260/2012 – Discharge of conditions 5 and 14 of application 02660/2012 for Variation of 

condition 4 of planning permission 01537/2011 in order to allow flexibili ty to commence earlier 
in the season - APPROVED 4th April 2013 

 

00058/2013 – Discharge of conditions 4b, 8 and 13 of application 02660/2012 for Variation of 
condition 4 of planning permission 01537/2011 in order to allow flexibility to start earlier in the 
season APPROVED 19th July 2013 

 
00521/2015 – Variation of conditions 2 and 4 attached to application 02660/2012 to amend 

approved plans and permit the retention of lighting installed on the DNO substation 
APPROVED 1st  June 2015 

 
00523/2015 – Discharge of Conditions 5 & 14 and variation of condition 4 of 01537/2011 in 
order to allow flexibility to commence earlier in the season APPROVED 23rd June 2015 

 
00957/2015 – Variation of condition 2 of planning application number 00521/2015 
CONDITIONAL APPROVAL 14th January 2016 

 
 

ANALYSIS 

Page 13



 

Principle of Development/Sustainability: 
 
The strategic spatial vision of the LPA is outlined in the Plymouth and South West Devon Joint 

Local Plan 2014-2034 (JLP) and Policies SPT1 and SPT2 contain principles for how a 
sustainable economy, society and environment is delivered. The concept of sustainable rural 

communities is introduced with promotion of renewable energy one of the key aims which sits 
alongside an aspiration to reuse previously developed sites as means of reducing the need for 
greenfield development.  

 
Policy DEV33 is also relevant when considering the principle of the development. This policy 

contains a commitment to increase the use and production of renewable and low carbon energy 
and proposals. Whilst the policy mainly concerns itself with new proposals it does require 
consideration of any operational and de-commisioning issues and also that there is a plan in 

place for removal of the technology on cessation of the generation, and restoration of the site 
to an acceptable alternative or previous use. The extension of the life cycle of this development 

will increase the production of renewable energy. Those aspects of the condition that seek the 
technology to be removed and the site restored would be retained on cessation of the 40 year 
period or if the panels stop producing renewable energy. On this basis the proposal will prolong 

the life of an established generator of renewable energy with appropriate safeguards in place 
to ensure that the site is resilient enough to revert back to open fields at the later date. As such 

the proposal is considered to comply with Policies SPT1, SPT2 and DEV33. 
 
Design/Landscape: 

 
Policies DEV20 and DEV23 of the JLP promote place making through good design and seek 

to protect and enhance landscape quality. Under DEV20 consideration must be given to the 
local context and existing assets. Under this policy materials and design solutions are promoted 
that are resilient to their context and will endure over time. Policy DEV23 requires respect to 

be paid to scenic quality and maintain an area’s distinct sense of place and local 
distinctiveness. Cognisance must also be given to management and maintenance of the 

landscape and the need for landscape measures that are resilient. 
 
The Highampton Neighbourhood Plan (HNP) also forms part of the Development Plan and 

Policy HNPEN1 seeks to safeguard the existing settlement and require proposals for new 
development to be complementary to the landscape but also achieving a high level of 

sustainability that aims for zero levels of carbon emissions. 
 
No changes are sought to the external appearance of the previously approved solar farm and 

the site and its surroundings have not changed significantly in the period since it was approved. 
Under this proposal the solar farm will continue to be a landscape feature for an additional 15 

years at which point the condition will require it to be removed and the land reinstated to open 
fields. The visual impact of this development has already been found to be acceptable, allowing 
permission for another 15 years is not considered to conflict with DEV20 and DEV23 of the 

JLP and HNPEN1 of the HNP. 
 

Neighbour Amenity: 
 
Policy DEV1 protects health and amenity by ensuring that development does not cause any 

adverse impact on residents. Issues such as overshadowing, privacy and noise from 
development, amongst others, are considered. Policy DEV2 states that development should 

Page 14



avoid any harmful impacts such as soil, air, water or noise pollution. Policy HNPEN1 also 

protects the amenity of the nearest residents. 
 
It is not considered that the use of the fields for the solar farm for an additional 15 years on top 

of the existing permission will have an adverse impact on the nearest residents. There has 
been no changes to the site or immediate vicinity since the solar farm was constructed that 

would raise any fresh concerns over the impact of this development. On this basis an additional 
15 years is considered to be in accordance with DEV1, DEV2 of the JLP and HNPEN1 of the 
HNP. 

 
Highways/Access: 

 
No changes are proposed to the previously approved arrangement and Highways have 
confirmed the extension does not raise any Highways implications. 

 
Carbon Reduction: 

 
Policy DEV32 of the JLP promotes the increased use of renewable energy as a means of 
achieving reductions in carbon emissions. The proposal will increase solar energy for an 

additional 15 years and is therefore in accordance with DEV32. 
 

Conclusion/Response to Parish Council objection 
 
The comments from the parish council are noted but there are no restrictions on when an 

extension can be applied for and the applicant is therefore free to submit one whenever they 
wish. The timing of when the application is submitted is not a material planning consideration. 

In addition, there is well established case law1 that, under a plan led system, it is not possible 
or desirable to predict what policies might apply in the future and apply them now.  
 

It is not therefore considered to be reasonable in the circumstances to speculate what policy 
developments may or may not occur between now and when the current permission expires 

and refuse this application on the basis that it is premature. The proposal to extend the time of 
the permission must be assessed against the relevant Planning Policy. As detailed above it is 
considered to be compliant and therefore it is recommended that it be granted conditional 

approval. 
 

This application has been considered in accordance with Section 38 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004  
 

Planning Policy 
 

Relevant policy framework 
 
Section 70 of the 1990 Town and Country Planning Act requires that regard be had to the 

development plan, any local finance and any other material considerations. Section 38(6) of 
the 2004 Planning and Compensation Act requires that applications are to be determined in 

accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  For 
the purposes of decision making, as of March 26th 2019, the Plymouth & South West Devon 
Joint Local Plan 2014 - 2034 is now part of the development plan for Plymouth City Council, 

                                                 
1  Secretary of State 29th April 2021 ref: APP/V2255/W/19/3233606 

Page 15



South Hams District Council and West Devon Borough Council (other than parts of South Hams 

and West Devon within Dartmoor National Park). 
 
On 26 March 2019 of the Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan was adopted by all 

three of the component authorities. Following adoption, the three authorities jointly notified the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG)* of their choice to monitor 

the Housing Requirement at the whole plan level. This is for the purposes of the Housing 
Delivery Test (HDT) and the 5 Year Housing Land Supply assessment.  A letter from MHCLG 
to the Authorities was received on 13 May 2019 confirming the change.  

On 13th January 2021 MHCLG published the HDT 2020 measurement.  This confirmed the 
Plymouth. South Hams and West Devon’s joint HDT measurement as 144% and the 

consequences are “None”. 
 
Therefore a 5% buffer is applied for the purposes of calculating a 5 year land supply at a whole 

plan level. When applying the 5% buffer, the combined authorities can demonstrate a 5-year 
land supply of 5.8 years at end March 2021 (the 2021 Monitoring Point). This is set out in the 

Plymouth, South Hams & West Devon Local Planning Authorities’ Housing Position Statement 
2021 (published 12th November 2021). 
 

[*now known as Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities] 
 

The relevant development plan policies are set out below: 
 
The Plymouth & South West Devon Joint Local Plan was adopted by South Hams 

District Council on March 21st 2019 and West Devon Borough Council on March 26th 
2019. 

 

SPT1 Delivering sustainable development 
SPT2 Sustainable linked neighbourhoods and sustainable rural communities 

DEV1 Protecting health and amenity 
DEV2 Air, water, soil, noise, land and light 

DEV20 Place shaping and the quality of the built environment 
DEV23 Landscape character 
DEV29 Specific provisions relating to transport 

DEV32 Delivering low carbon development 
DEV33 Renewable and low carbon energy (including heat) 

 
Neighbourhood Plan 

 

The Highampton Neighbourhood Plan is a made plan and therefore forms part of the 
Development Plan and Policy HNPEN1 (Environmental Policy) is of relevance.  

 
Other material considerations  
 

The policies of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) including paragraphs 157 
and 158 and guidance in Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) are also of relevance.  
 
Considerations under Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 

The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 and Equalities Act 2010 have been taken into 

account in reaching the recommendation contained in this report. 
 

 

Page 16



 

Conditions 
 

1. Within 40 years and six months following completion of construction of the development, 

or within six months of the cessation of electricity generation by the solar photovoltaic 
facility, or within six months following a permanent cessation of construction works prior 

to the solar photovoltaic facility coming into operational use, whichever is the sooner, 
the solar photovoltaic panels, frames, foundations, and all associated structures and 
fencing hereby approved shall have been dismantled and removed from the site. The 

developer shall notify the Local Planning Authority in writing no later than five working 
days following cessation of power production. The site shall subsequently be restored 

in accordance with a scheme, the details of which shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority no later than three months following the 
cessation of power production or within 40 years of the completion of construction, 

whichever is the sooner. No permission is hereby granted for any physical changes 
associated with the development as approved previously and the development shall 

accord with the plans approved in the original planning permission and subsequent 
amendments. 
 

Reason: To define the permission  

 
2. No external artificial lighting other than the two external lights installed on the DNO 

substation as shown on Plan 24 DNO Building (April 2013) shall be installed during the 

operation of the site as a solar photovoltaic facility.  
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and ecology  

 

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order, 1995 (or any Order amending, replacing or re-enacting that 

Order), no fixed plant or machinery, buildings, structures and erections, or private ways 
shall be erected (other than those expressly authorised by this permission). No fixed 
plant or machinery, buildings, structures and erections, or private ways shall be, 

extended, installed, rearranged, replaced, repaired or altered at the site.  
 
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity. 

 
4. The recommendations of the previously approved habitat survey shall be adhered to 

during the lifetime of the planning permission. 
 

Reason: In the interest of biodiversity 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 West Devon Borough Council 
 

 PLANNING AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 13-Dec-22 
 Appeals Update from 18-Oct-22 to 21-Nov-22 
 
 Ward Bere Ferrers 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 0735/21/HHO APP/Q1153/D/22/3290063 
 APPELLANT NAME: Mr Harry Acland 
 PROPOSAL: Erection of stable building 
 LOCATION: Hewton House Bere Alston PL20 7BW Officer member delegated 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 
 APPEAL START DATE: 21-January-2022 
 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld (Conditional approval) 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 24-October-2022 
 

 Ward Buckland Monachorum 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 3372/21/PAA APP/Q1153/W/22/3305281 
 APPELLANT NAME: Mr David Glanville 
 PROPOSAL: Prior approval application for proposed new machinery and hay 
 store following application 1795/21/AGR 
 LOCATION: Pound Farm Buckland Monachorum PL20 7LH Officer delegated 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 
 APPEAL START DATE: 08-November-2022 
 APPEAL DECISION: 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 

 Ward Okehampton North 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 0131/22/FUL APP/Q1153/W/22/3303994 
 APPELLANT NAME: Mr Alex Fillingham 
 PROPOSAL: READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans received) Redevelopment of existing 
 farmhouse outbuildings for two new holiday accommodation units 
 (Resubmission of 0635/21/FUL) 
 LOCATION: South Narraton Narratons Road Okehampton   EX20 1SL Officer delegated 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 
 APPEAL START DATE: 07-November-2022 
 APPEAL DECISION: 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 
 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 1057/21/HHO APP/Q1153/D/21/3277980 
 APPELLANT NAME: Mr Mark Betambeau 
 PROPOSAL: Householder application for alterations and extension to provide new 
 master bedroom (Option A) 
 LOCATION: 8 Kellands Lane Okehampton EX20 1FQ Officer member delegated 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 
 APPEAL START DATE: 22-March-2022 
 APPEAL DECISION: Upheld (Conditional approval) 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 04-November-2022 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 1059/21/HHO APP/Q1153/D/21/3277984 
 APPELLANT NAME:  Mr Mark Betambeau 
 PROPOSAL: Householder application for alterations and extension to provide new 
 master bedroom (option B) 
 LOCATION: 8 Kellands Lane Okehampton EX20 1FQ Officer member delegated 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 
 APPEAL START DATE: 22-March-2022 
 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 04-November-2022 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 4117/20/HHO APP/Q1153/D/21/3277973 
 APPELLANT NAME: Mr Mark Beambeau 
 PROPOSAL: Householder application for alteration and extension to provide 
 master bedroom above garage 
 LOCATION: 8 Kellands Lane Okehampton EX20 1FQ Officer member delegated 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal decided 
 APPEAL START DATE: 23-March-2022 
 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 04-November-2022 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



 

 Ward Tavistock North 
 APPLICATION NUMBER: 2611/21/FUL APP/Q1153/W/21/3288657 
 APPELLANT NAME: Mr Iain Duncan-White 
 PROPOSAL: Full planning application for garage refurbishment and conversion intoa self-contained  
 holiday let. 
 LOCATION: Barley Market Street Garage Barley Market Street  Officer delegated 
 Tavistock   PL19 0JF 
 APPEAL STATUS: Appeal Lodged 
 APPEAL START DATE: 24-March-2022 
 APPEAL DECISION: Dismissed (Refusal) 
 APPEAL DECISION DATE: 02-November-2022 
 

Page 20



 

 
 1 

 
West Devon Planning  10 
 

 Undetermined Major applications as at 21-Nov-22 
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2915/19/FUL Steven Stroud 18-Dec-19 18-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 
 
 Wool Grading Centre, Fore Street North Tawton    READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans received) Conversion of  
 existing Grade II listed mill buildings (Building A) into 11 open  
 market townhouses &redevelopment for B1 office use.  
 Conversion/re-erection of Building B into 3 open market dwellings 
 
Comments: Agent submitted further information. Meeting held, EoT agreed and further information awaited. Likely to require a 
further EOT 
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 3652/20/FUL Bryn Kitching 18-Nov-20 17-Feb-21 21-Dec-21 
 
 Land to the South of Plymouth Roa Tavistock     READVERTISEMENT (Revised plans received and amended  
 development description) Hybrid application comprising full planning  
 application for erection of 44 residential dwellings, formation of  
 accesses, associated public open space, landscaping and
 infrastructure; and outline planning application for extra care facility  
 for up to 60 units with all matters reserved, except means of access 
 
Comments: Committee resolution to approve subject to completion of S106 Agreement 
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 4113/21/OPA Steven Stroud 16-Nov-21 15-Feb-22 20-May-22 
 
 Rondor And Gunns Yard  North Street Okehampton    Outline application with some matters reserved for the  
 development of 19 No. dwellings with new private access road,  
 parking and external works 
 
Comments: 
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 0107/22/OPA Steven Stroud 13-Jan-22 14-Apr-22 1-Jun-22 
 
 Land north of Green Hill Lamerton    Outline application with some matters reserved for residential 
 development of 21 dwellings with access road, parking,  
 services and external works 
 
Comments: 
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 4004/21/FUL Jacqueline Houslander 26-Apr-22 26-Jul-22 11-Nov-22 
 
 Former Hazeldon Preparatory School Parkwood Road  Refurbishment of Hazeldon House to form a single dwelling  
 Tavistock  PL19 0JS (including demolition of non listed structures), demolition of all  
 other structures (including former classroom blocks) on site, the  
 erection of 10 open market dwellings, reinstatement of original  
 site access, restoration of parkland, associated infrastructure  
 (including drainage and retaining structures), landscaping, open  
 space, play space, removal of some trees, parking and  
 boundary treatments 
 
Comments: Meeting held and issues discussed at length. Two further meetings to be held – one with Sport England to review their 
response to the application and one with the architects regarding design details.  
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 1671/22/ARM Clare Stewart 16-May-22 15-Aug-22 
 
 The Depot at SX 665 101 Devonshire Gardens North  Application for approval of reserved matters for 13 dwellings 
 Tawton    following outline approval 1484/17/OPA detailing layout,  
 appearance, scale, landscaping and associated infrastructure 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 

 
 1 

 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 1266/22/OPA Steven Stroud 17-Aug-22 16-Nov-22 
 
 Hawley House Church Road Highampton   EX21 5LS Outline application with all matters reserved for the erection of up 
 to 19 residential dwellings including public open space 
 
Comments: Under consideration by officer 
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2961/22/VAR Graham Smith 23-Aug-22 22-Nov-22 
 
 Solar Farm, Willsland Highampton EX21 5LQ Application for variation of condition 12 (removal of equipment  
 and site restoration) on Appeal Decision APP/Q1153/A/11/2164421           
 (01537/2011) to extend the operational life of the solar farm 
 
Comments: 13th December WD committee meeting  
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2441/21/FUL Steven Stroud 13-Sep-22 13-Dec-22 
 
 The Old Woollen Mill Fore Street North Tawton    Hybrid application for full planning for 28 dwellings and 12 
 dwellings as outline permission (Self Build Plots) 
 
Comments: 
 
 Valid Date Target Date EoT Date 
 2873/22/ARM Helen Grant 13-Sep-22 13-Dec-22 
 
 
 Development Site At Sx 382 850  Fore Street Lifton    Application for approval of reserved matters following Outline 
 Approval 2353/18/OPA relating to layout, scale, appearance,  
 and landscaping for the construction of 54 dwellings with  
 associated public open space including allotments,  
 landscaping and sustainable drainage and the Discharge of  
 Conditions 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12,   13, 14, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20, 21,  
 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28 pursuant to application 0159/22/VAR  
 (variation to outline permission 2353/18/OPA) 
 
Comments: 
 

Page 22


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	LSC Mins 6.10.22

	5a 2961/22/VAR
	6 Planning Appeals Update
	7 Update on Undetermined Major Applications

